

General Meeting of the European Model Flying Union

Hybrid Meeting – Duisburg & Zoom, 15 & 16 October 2022 Commenced 13:00 hrs

Draft Minutes of Meeting

In Attendance Attendees as per list in Appendix 1.

Opening of the meeting

Greetings of the hosting member (DAeC)

The secretary welcomed delegates to the meeting on behalf of the DAeC.

Session 1

Designation of a reporter for the meeting

As the usual reporter (Rob Buckley) was attending remotely, the President agreed to produce the report of the meeting.

Approval of the agenda of the 7. General Assembly

The agenda of the meeting was approved with no changes. The meeting was being recorded to allow minutes to be recorded, there were no objections to the recording.

Approval of the 6. General Assembly minutes of 3 October 2021

The minutes of the previous Zoom meeting were accepted as a true & accurate record with no objections.

Election of the election supervisor and one election assistant

Session 2

Report of the President

The President reported on the recent work of the EMFU, including completion of the guide book on the implementation of Article 16 which EASA had commissioned for the benefit of the model flying community throughout EU Member States and their regulators. The President commended the time and effort that Jürgen Lefevere had put into drafting the document on behalf of the EMFU. EASA had not formally approved the document but had confirmed that they were content for the EMFU to share it with members.

The EMFU had also provided input into EASA's model flying video (<u>https://fb.watch/g8cXSk7hyC/</u>) and had been asked to review content and provide images for EASA's model flying website which was in development. The President re-stated his previous request for members to provide images of videos for EASA to include on their website.

The President commented on the continued good relations with Europe Air Sports and would be attending their Technical Conference at the end of October, with some senior officials from EASA also in attendance. Key issues for the entire air sport community remained the implementation of U-Space and the integration of BVLOS drones into the airspace.

The Secretary provided an update on his work with ISAD e.v. on the ongoing radio spectrum work.

The President raised a discussion point to seek feedback from members regarding the ongoing relevance of the EMFU to them. At the outset, the union had been formed specifically to deal with the negotiations surrounding the EU Drone Regulations. The President commented that requests for input from members on subsequent matters often received minimal response and he wanted to determine whether this was because members were content with the work being conducted by the EMFU on their behalf or because they were no longer engaged/interested. The consensus of the meeting was that the EMFU continued to perform a valuable function and would be needed to deal with future challenges. The President thanked members for their support.

Report of the Treasurer and the committee for the verification of accounts

The President reported that the Treasurer had been inactive due to health problems and subscriptions had been collected and no accounts had been provided for the meeting to consider. The President confirmed that the Treasurer was now active and was willing to stand for re-election in his role, which would be discussed further during session 3.

The President commented that although subscriptions had not been collected for two years, the outgoings of the EMFU had also been greatly reduced due to the COVID pandemic. The only significant outgoings were the subscriptions to Europe Air Sports and the EMFU's finances would also be bolstered by the payment from EASA for the Article 16 guide.

As such, the President proposed that the outstanding subscriptions would not be recovered, as most members had long since closed their accounts for those years. However, updated membership numbers would be obtained from members and subscription invoices would be expedited by the Treasurer from this point forward.

Presentation and approval of the budget for 2023 Contribution from the Board, Membership fees. Discussion and decision

The Board proposed that the fees for 2023 would be:

Full Member:	0.16€ per represented pilot per year.
Non-commercial Associated Member:	0.08€ per represented pilot per year.
Commercial Association Member:	0.1% of the annual turnover limited to 2000€

For all classes of membership, a minimum of 30€ would apply.

This proposal was approved.

Session 3

Election of the Vice-President. Proposal: Laurent Henry (FFAM)

Laurent Henry introduced himself to the meeting and his election to the Board was approved. Delegates applauded Laurent on his election.

Election of the Treasurer. Proposal: Haagen Valanes (NLF)

In the absence of Haagen, the President outlined three choices for the GA to consider:

- 1. Not to re-elect Haagen, with other Board members to take temporary control of the finances.
- 2. Re-elect Haagen who was willing to continue but to provide greater support to help him fulfil his role.
- 3. For a new volunteer to step forward for election to the post.

After discussion, it was agreed that Haagen Valanes would be re-elected as Treasurer and offered greater support by the Board in his role.

Espen Bakke (NLF) Robert Buckley (LMA) Jürgen Lefevere (SMV)

The re-election of all three existing Board members was approved.

Election of the members of the committee for the verification of accounts

It was agreed that the committee for the verification of accounts would be comprised of:

Hans Krijne (who also volunteered to assist the Treasurer if required).

Bengt Lindgren (who had conveyed his willingness to be appointed in his absence).

It was requested by Robert Herzog (LBA), that arrangements for a secret ballot should be put in place for future hybrid GA meetings.

Session 4

New Members:

Short Presentation of the Real Federación Aeronáutica Española (RFAE) from Spain Carles Aymant provided a brief introduction for the RFAE who were applying for full membership of the EMFU.

Short presentation of the Clube de Aeromodelismo de Assafora (CAAS) from Portugal

No representative from CAAS was present, but details of the application for full membership of the EMFU had been circulated prior to the meeting by the General Secretary.

Decision and voting about membership

Both the RFAE and CAAS were approved and welcomed to the EMFU as full members.

Session 5

Review of options for EMFU membership and possible change of statutes

- 1. Board Proposal for change of statutes
- 2. Proposal for change of statutes from DAeC, FFAM and ÖAEC

Following receipt of a request from DAeC, FFAM and ÖAEC for a change to the statutes, the matter was discussed at length. The wording proposed and agreed by the GA for the statutes was as follows:

- 6.1 Full Membership of the EMFU is open to organisations that represent model aircraft operators and pilots and have legal personality in a European country. Organisations eligible for full membership may be regional, national or international, and represent all or specific branches or types of model flying. There may be more than one organisation within a country eligible for full membership of the EMFU. The status of the organizations which have been full member before xx.xx.xxxx (date of change of the statutes) is not affected.
- 6.2 Associate Membership is open to persons or organisations that are not eligible for full Membership as stated in Article 6.1.
- 6.3 Persons or organisations who wish to join the EMFU shall submit their membership request with the relevant justifications to the General Secretary. The Executive Board shall examine this request and make a recommendation for a decision by the General Meeting.
- 6.3bis The Executive Board may decide to provisionally engage persons or organisations applying for membership in the work of the EMFU, without the right to vote or the requirement to pay membership fees, until the decision on their membership by the General Meeting.

End of Day 1

For the benefit of those physically in attendance in Duisburg, the General Secretary had arranged an enjoyable evening for delegates at Webster Brauhaus.

<u>Day 2</u>

Session 6

EU regulation and related issues

1. Implementation issues with EU Implementing Regulation and Article 16 Authorisations Jürgen Lefevere led a discussion on issues encountered by members with the EU Implementing Regulation and Article 16 Authorisations. It was hoped that the newly produced guide to implementing Article 16 would provide useful assistance for members negotiations with their national regulators.

2. Review/Proposals to change EU Rules

3. U-Space and Electronic Conspicuity

The President gave a presentation outlining current projects in the UK to make model flying conspicuous. These included a trial using ground-based broadcast from an ADS-B obstruction beacons (see

https://uavionix.com/projects/ukobsbeacon/?fbclid=IwAR10n2MJWoBhXz-1qcsrsm8POytLOVqiwo4f 7Y-Ez4axzp9HR1Ls2sbese0) and a separate trial using an app based notification system. Other members including including LBA were already using app based notification and Robert Herzog provided a demonstration of the system in use in Belgium (see www.droneguide.be).

As U-Space and Electronic Conspicuity were issues of major concern for the entire model flying community, it was suggested that an EMFU Working Group be established to develop an EMFU position for presentation to EASA/the EC Commission.

4. Other issues (including topics raised by members)

The threat to model flying due to objections from wildlife campaigners was discussed and this had been a long-term issue for several members. Several members had conducted studies or compiled useful information and it was agreed that resources could be collated and shared via the website.

Session 7

Clarification of the Membership status of IG-Hangflug (in response to a letters received from DAeC, FFAM and ÖAEC and IG-Hangflug.

The membership status of IG-Hangflug was discussed at length in response to a letter received from DAeC, FFAM and ÖAEC and the subsequent response from IG-Hangflug. Following this discussion, the GA:

- Stressed that our common objective is to support aeromodelling and aeromodellers in Europe. In this context, the GA underlined the importance of constructive cooperation and open, friendly & respectful communication between members;
- Noted that legal personality is not a requirement for associate membership.
- Welcomed IG-Hangflug's report on its process to acquire legal personality and noted that should IG-Hangflug wish to become a full member in the future, then it can apply for full membership status pursuant to Article 6 in the EMFU Statutes (as revised).

In consideration of the above, it was the unanimous decision of the GA that the status of IG-Hangflug would remain unchanged as that of an associate member of the EMFU.

Session 8

Website and Social Media

It was agreed that the EMFU would maintain its current position of not having a social media presence.

Jürgen Lefevere provided an update on the status of the EMFU website and requested that members provide information to allow him to keep the site up to date. Of particular interest was provision of information for visiting pilots.

Jürgen proposed to create a resources page, collating useful resources for members to share, including the wildlife studies referred to in Session 6.

The President thanked Jürgen for the significant effort he had put into making the website a valuable information resource.

Session 9

Location for the 2023 General Assembly

The ÖAEC offered an invitation to hold the EMFU 8.GA in Vienna which the meeting accepted. The date was not fixed but it was suggested that the meeting would take place in 12 months' time (October 2023). It was agreed that if the GA was to be moved to October (from May) each year, that an amendment to the statutes may need to be agreed at the next GA.

AOB

The President closed the meeting offering thanks to the General Secretary for his organisation of the GA and thanking members for their ongoing support.

The meeting closed at 13.30hrs

Appendix 1

Attendees

Present in Duisburg

Dave Phipps	EMFU President & BMFA
Laurent Henry	EMFU Vice President & FFAM
Frank Tofahrn	EMFU General Secretary & DAeC
Jurgen Lefevere	EMFU Board Member & SMV
Espen Bakke	EMFU Board Member & NLF
Adrian Eggenberger	SMV
Achim Doerfler	IG-Hangflug
Gerd Holzner	IG-Hangflug
Harri Pihl	FAA
Hans Krijne	FLRCV
Leo Van Eylen	VML
Robert Herzog	LBA
Paulette Halleaux	LBA

Also present Martina Tofahrn – Admin & Catering support

Rob Buckley	LMA
Arsenio Solana	AEAMD
Bernhard Rögner	ÖAEC
Christian Faymann	ÖAEC
Ernest Mattiusi	FAL
Michael Österlund	RCFF
Carles Aymat	RFAE
Vitor Ferreira	CAAS